Request for Proposal (RFP) DGS 55046
Questions and Answers

May 3, 2006
	#
	Questions 
	Answers

	1. 
	Section I, page 6, para. f. If we request changes to the RFP requirements by May 18th and these changes are declined, are we still eligible to submit a Final Proposal?
	Yes; however, if you submit a final proposal with request for changes that have been declined, you will risk being deemed non-responsive and not considered for an award.  

	2. 
	Section I, page 10, paragraph b., fourth bullet item indicates that the Final Proposal is to be signed.  Where is that signature to go?


	Bidders are required to provide a signature on the cover letter, which shall be included with the final proposal submission.  Refer to Section I, page 9, b. Cover Letter for more information.

	3. 
	Will the State accept a “conversion” bonus?  If the answer is yes, how will that bonus be scored?


	The State will not accept a conversion bonus.  The proposals will be evaluated in accordance with Section 1, page 10, 5.  Evaluation and Selection Process.

	4. 
	Section II, page 23, Exhibit C: General Terms and Conditions, para. 4: Audit.  Will all the agencies be able to audit the same periods, or will only one agency audit any particular period?


	In accordance with the General Terms and Conditions (GTC), Item 4:  Audit, only the Department of General Services, the Bureau of State Audits, or their designated representative shall have the right to conduct audits for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment.

	5. 
	Section II, page 7, para. 9.  Please distinguish (if, in fact, there is a distinction) between Contract Award Date and “Contractor Start Date.”  If the Contract Award and Execution Date is July 15, 2006, could the Start Date be August 1, 2006?  Would the transition from the current Contractor be measured from the Contract Award and Execution Date or from a Start Date?


	The contract award date is the date the Notification of Intent to Award is released.  The contract start date is the first day of the contract term date listed on the standard agreement (STD. 213), which is usually six (6) to fifteen (15) days after the date the Notification of Intent to Award is released.  
No.  

The transition will be measured from the contract term date (start date) listed in the STD. 213.  

	6. 
	Section II, page 16, para. b. (last para. on page 16).  What is the difference between “disputed” and “reported” fraud items?  From the State’s viewpoint, what are the definitions of both terms?


	Please refer to Section II, page 10, f. Disputed Transactions for description of disputed, and g.  Liability for description of fraud.   

	7. 
	Section II, page 12.  Would the bank need to print the statements and send them to the State or would the State print them from the Internet software?


	Participating agencies shall have the choice to either print and send or download the statements.  Please refer to Section II, page 11, 11. Program and Transaction Data for reporting requirements.     

	8. 
	Section II, page 13.  Would this data need to be printed on hardcopy statements/reports AND also viewable on the Internet software?
	See answer to Question #7.

	9. 
	Section II, page 17.  Can you describe the detailed information that would “cross-reference Cardholder Statement, Approving Official Summary and monthly invoice number”?
	Please refer to Section II, page 11, 11. Program and Transaction Data for hierarchical reporting and roll-up requirements.

	10. 
	Section 19:  I think Jennifer already asked about the small Business/DVBE subcontracting reporting.  We need to know what it must look like.
	Please take a look at Exhibit U for required data elements.  The State will work with the contractor to develop a mutually acceptable reporting format.  

	11. 
	Section I, page 19, para. (10) a. mentions the State Prompt Payment Act; where can we learn more about the Act?


	Please refer to Chapter 4.5 Prompt Payment of Claims in the Government Codes at this website link:
http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/pd/misc/excerp00.pdf


	12. 
	Section II, page 7, fourth para. requires notification “Within two business hours of an event… to…the Cardholders….”.  How do you foresee this Cardholder notification occurring? 


	The State and contractor will mutually agree to an acceptable procedure to meet the notification timeframe of two business hours once the contract is in place.  

	13. 
	Can you estimate the amount of international travel dollars currently being charged to the CAL-Card Program?


	The State does not allow purchase card services for travel expenses.  The local agencies may utilize the purchase card services for travel expenses.  At this time, the amount of international travel dollars is not available.  

	14. 
	Are Cash Advances allowed?  Can a public entity allow Cash Advances?  Can you estimate the number of Cash Advance transactions and the amount of Cash Advances requested by the cardholders annually?  By the State and its Agencies?  By the other participants?


	Please refer to Section I, page 21, (13) Other Services.  Bidders are allowed to offer other services.  Cash advances could be one of these services.  It is anticipated that the contract will include other services and each participating agency will have the flexibility to incorporate these services into their purchase card program.   Cash advance statistics are unknown at this time. 

	15. 
	Section I, page 16, para. 12.  Can you elaborate on “Will the CAL-Card Program have access into card management system that includes cardholder authority history?”  
	Cardholder authority history can include transactional and account maintenance history.     

	16. 
	Addendum #1, Para. 11.  Should Non-Appropriation of (State) Funds result in the termination of the Contract, does the State still consider itself liable for purchases made during “appropriation” periods and for purchases made in the “non-appropriated” periods wherein the benefit of those purchases accrued to the benefit of the State?  Will the State pay for purchases?
	Yes.  All authorized purchases are the financial responsibility of the participating agency, except for reported fraud or disputed transactions. 

	17. 
	Section IV, Exhibit H, page 3.  Will the State waive the DVBE advertisement requirement for this RFP?
	No.  For this procurement, the DVBE advertisement requirement will not be waived.  

	18. 
	What fraud details are needed on the statement?

	Any subsequent posting of a debit or credit shall be identified as fraud resolution activity as well as any related status reporting.  Please refer to Section II, page 13, Cardholder statement for more information.  

	19. 
	We will require a list of the State’s suppliers to provide acceptance percentages.
	The State will not provide a list of the State’s suppliers to provide acceptance percentages.  This is not a requirement for purchase card acceptance.  Please refer to Section I, page 13, (4) Purchasing Card Acceptance for more information. 

	20. 
	What is the State’s current process for card activation and deactivation?

	Upon receipt of the card, card holders contact the telephone number provided by the card issuer to activate card.  Upon decision to deactivate, the card holder or agency program coordinator will contact the card issuer to deactivate the card by telephone, mail, fax or on-line account management system.

	21. 
	Please provide the State’s definition of “skimmed” cards.

	An industry definition for skimming is typically when someone in a retail setting steals information from a card’s magnetic stripe by swiping the customer’s card in a skimming device.  Later, the “skimmed” card information can be transferred to a counterfeit card and used to make fraudulent purchases.

	22. 
	Please provide the State’s definition of “specific authority cards.” 
	An addendum will be issued to remove “specific authority cards.”

	23. 
	RFP Section I page 16, item 5: Cycle Limits:  Please elaborate more on the CAL-Card need and goal for "Time period and declining and reloadable balances". Any further detail on the issue you are attempting to solve for would be helpful.
	The State wants to know what are the options available for setting cycle limits. 

	24. 
	RFP Section I page 17, item 13.: Please define in more detail what you mean by "specific authority" functionality.
	See answer to Question #22.    

	25. 
	RFP Section I page 19, item 9,b.4: " Does your company's online systems support:"  "On-line reallocation of charges from one chart string to another at your company's site before charges are transmitted to the customer." 
	An addendum will be issued to remove “at your company’s site.”

	26. 
	Please provide more detail as to the functionality required. Are you asking for software which will re-allocate transactions for you based upon logic triggered in the issuers system?
	If your online system supports re-allocation capabilities, please describe it in your detailed response to the technical requirement.  

	27. 
	S1, D - Key dates - 

Responses due 5:00pm PST.  Is Pacific Daylight Time what was meant?
	PST is a standard acronym for Pacific Standard Time (PST).  We are currently on day light savings time, so Pacific Daylight Time (PDT) would be synonymous with PST. 

	28. 
	Section 1, pg 13, Item 4 Purchasing Card Acceptance

The RFP says the response will be ranked on number of supplier locations, and does not address eCommerce or Internet providers.  The card associations may have varying ways of defining acceptance.  Is the following acceptable to include in the count both physical locations and e-commerce sites?
	An addendum will be issued to clarify this requirement.   

	29. 
	Section 1, pg 1, paragraph 2.

Would a bidder be expected to offer the same Cost/Rebate percentages to any WSCA entity as is offered to the State, when the other WSCA State's volume numbers are not provided or guaranteed as part of the contract?  Or would the bidder be able to negotiate rebate individually with a WSCA state based on their own volume?
	Please refer to Section I, page 1, A.  Introduction and Overview (second paragraph) …a WSCA participating addendum will be mutually developed between the contractor, the interested WSCA state, and the State of California.   

	30. 
	Section III Cost/Rebate

sub-section B. points 1.-3.: This rebate structure/format appears to be more advantageous for the those participants (e.g., agencies) paying later than participants who pay faster. Would the State of California be willing to consider a two-dimension rebate grid taking into account each participating entity's (e.g.,. agency's) respective average transaction size along with the CAL-Card program's combined spend, and a second single-dimension grid rewarding each participating entity (e.g.,. agency) based on their own respective payment performance as it improves from 45 client held days? Are you willing to exclude those who do not pay within 45 client held days from all rebates?  
	This is a request to change requirements, so it will not be addressed in the questions and answers set.

	31. 
	Section III Cost/Rebate

Request is that the bidder pay Tran size and Volume rebate within 30 days of end of quarter.  This is asking for rebate to be paid even before the 45 day payment due period.  Will the State change the payment due date to within 50 days after the quarter ends, or some such date that allows the bank to get paid before remitting rebate?
	This is a request to change requirements, so it will not be addressed in the questions and answers set.

	32. 
	Section III Cost Rebate

Section III -- The intent of the contract is to promote usage across a broad agency contingency.  The State's administrative fee of 40 basis points impacts a bidder's ability to reward agencies who grow their program, and thus growth the overall contract.  Can the State help the bidders understand how the administrative fee will be utilized to growth the program?  Is the State willing to reduce the administrative fee percentage so that larger rebates can be extended to the participating agencies?
	This is a request to change requirements, so it will not be addressed in the questions and answers set.    

	33. 
	Section III F Price List

Please clarify on this item.  The bid states the contract is to be 'no cost'.  It then states in section III, Part F, bidders are 'allowed to include' a price list.  Then is Section IV Forms and Exhibits Item L it says a price list is 'mandatory'.  So how does one add price to a 'no cost' contract, and is the item optional or required?


	Please refer to Section III, page 4, F.  Commercially Available Price List for additional purchase card services and technologies.  Additionally, refer to Section I, Page 21, (13) Other Services for more information.

	34. 
	Exhibit U - Data Elements

In what instances does DGS expect to see these data elements?  Billing files?  General Transactional or Supplier Reporting?  Small Business/DVBE specialized reporting?
	The State and contractor will mutually agree on an acceptable method to receive this data.    

	35. 
	Exhibit U - Data Elements

Please clarify what Data Elements must be available day one of the contract or are to be developed collaboratively with OSDS as noted in Section II Page 15. 
	All state agencies are required to collect and report all data elements outline in Exhibit U for all transactions.   Therefore, it is important that all elements outlined in Exhibit U be collected and reported in the most expeditious manner.  Please see Section II, page 15, fifth paragraph (under the bullet at top of page) for more information.  

	36. 
	Section II, Pg 7 Statewide Transition

Does DGS think a 6 month transition maximum is realistic given the number of participants, and the variety of complex options available to the participants?  It is conceivable that an agency may take months to simply absorb and decision the options available to them. The banks can only transition in concert and cooperation with each agency.
	The transition must be facilitated over a maximum 6-month time span.  The State recognizes that the transition requires collaboration between the Contractor, State, and Participating Agencies.  Therefore, if a participating agency is not cooperating in a timely manner and the contractor is unable to make a full transition and implementation of the purchase card services because of this lack of cooperation, it is understandable that the transition may take more than six-months.

	37. 
	Section 11 Pg 12 - Data Delivery

Data security is a high priority for Banks, and some of the transmission types - magnetic tape, and diskettes, are either obsolete, or have been discontinued due to internal data security decisions around data intercept.  Is the State willing to accept data in media or transmission methods that are currently state of the art relative to data security?
	The contractor will be required to provide versatile and comprehensive reporting capabilities, see Section II, page 12, 11.  Program and Transaction Data, third paragraph for required reporting media. 

	38. 
	Section 1, Pg 17 d- Controls, item 12

Cardholder authority history'.  Please define what is meant by this?
	See answer to Question #15.

	39. 
	Section 1, Pg 17d- Controls, item 13

Please define 'specific authority'.


	An addendum will be issued to remove “specific authority.”

	40. 
	Section II Pg 14 Supplier Activity Report

Requirement states Supplier Report must be inclusive of certifications, 1099 reportable spend data, and, Small Business, etc data.  Please define what you mean by '1099 reportable spend data'.  As well, please provide clarification around the entire subject of OSDS reporting.  The Data Element Requirements (items 4-22)ask for information that is currently resident with OSDS, not the Banks.  These are stated as requirements, presumable from day 1 of the contract.  However, in Section II, page 15, it states that the contractor will work collaboratively with OSDS to strive to attain OSDS complaint reporting.  Please clarify.


	An addendum will be released to make changes to clarify the certification requirement.  
The 1099 elements are described in Section II, page 15, paragraphs 1, 2, 3, and 4.  

See answer to Question #35. 

	41. 
	Response Structure

Sections 1 & 2 contain requirements that are both specific and redundant to each other.  Are bidders to answer requirements in both sections even though they may be repetitive of cross referenced?  


	Bidders are required to describe their compliance to all requirements.  If there is a redundancy in the requirements, please cross reference your response to these requirements.

	42. 
	Other

Subsection F.8. CONTRACTUAL INFORMATION points a. second & third sentences..."The model contract(s) are appropriate for this RFP and included in this RFP.  Additionally, when a specific actual project is awarded it may contain additional contract terms and conditions." seems to contradict with point b. "The contract to be awarded is included in the solicitation bid document in its final form, and alteration by a bidder will result in rejection of his/her offer." Please clarify this conflict.
	The specific model contract language can not be changed.  However, bidders may include additional terms and conditions with their final proposal that do not conflict with the model contract language.   


